
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, April 04, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Assistant Mayor Steven Hollibush. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Fire Chief David Fletcher.  

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Texarkana Public Library Presentation. (ADMIN) Library Director Jennifer Strayhorn  

2. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (CCD) Heather 

Soyars  

CONSENT 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 21, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with A.L. Franks 

Engineering for the design of Tennessee Road, Meadows Road, and Union Road 

Improvements. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards  

5. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase a TIGER Boom Rotary Mower 

for the Public Works Department Streets Division. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards  

6. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase Nutanix Hyper-Converged 

Infrastructure Solution to be utilized as server hosting by the Texarkana Water Utilities 



 

(TWU) for both cities of Texarkana, Arkansas, and Texarkana, Texas.  (TWU-IT) IT Manager 

Brandon Uselton 

REGULAR 

7. Adopt a Resolution to amend the 2022 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Budget for 

inclusion of specific street projects. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson 

8. Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located in the 600 block of Meadows Road from 

R-2 Single-family residential to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning, in order to build a shop before 

building the house. (Barr) (Ward 3) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck   

9. Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 91 S. Valley Drive from R-1 Rural 

residential to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning, in order to build a shop before building the house. 

(Kegley) (Ward 1) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck   

10. Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 5706 Four States Parkway from R-1 

Rural residential to O-1 Office quiet commercial. (Asbille) (Ward 6) (PWD-Planning) City 

Planner Mary Beck   

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

11. Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal approval of a private club 

application on behalf of Hector Leal for the Cattlemen’s Club, Inc., at 4018 N. Stateline 

Avenue. (CCD) 

An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, April 18, 2022 

ADJOURN 

 

2022 City Calendar 

Dance Fitness - Texarkana Rec Center - Tuesdays - 6-8PM 

Life Skills & Risk Avoidance Classes - 6th, 7th, & 8th Graders - Texarkana Rec Center - 

Monday, April 4th - Girls 5-6PM - Boys 6-7PM 

2022 College Fair - Texarkana Rec Center - Tuesday, April 5th - 5-8PM 

Breakfast with the Easter Bunny - Texarkana Rec Center - Saturday, April 9th - 9-11AM 

Twin City Meat Up & 5K - Friday & Saturday, April 22nd - 23rd 



 

Food Truck Festival - Bobby Ferguson Park - Saturday, April 30th - 10AM - 8PM 

Twin City Black History Association Parade - Saturday, April 30th - 10AM - noon 

Gateway Farmer’s Market – Opening Saturday, May 7th - 7AM till noon 

The Greater Texarkana Autism Awareness Fundraiser - Saturday, May 21st - 7AM - 5PM 

Texarkana Down Syndrome Society Awareness Walk & Fun Day - Saturday, October 8th - 

Front Street - 8AM - 4PM 

Universal Vibes - Crossties & Front Street - Saturday, October 22nd - 10AM - 11PM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Texarkana Public Library Presentation. (ADMIN) Library Director 

Jennifer Strayhorn  

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Library  

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Library Presentation 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY:  

EXPENSE REQUIRED:  

AMOUNT BUDGETED:  

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

 

EXHIBITS:  

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (CCD) Heather Soyars  

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Employee Service Awards: 

The Arkansas Municipal League awarded Rachel Hopkins a certificate 

for completing Basic Grant Writing and Management Training.  

 

James Megason TAPD 30 Years 

Dara Cornett TAPD 20 Years 

Mary Beck City Planner 15 Years 

Adam Benton, Jr. TWU 15 Years 

Larry Bradshaw TWU 15 Years 

Quincy Hubbard TWU 10 Years 

Stanley Kowzic TWU 15 Years 

Mundang Johnson TWU 10 Years 

Billy Thomas TWU 5 Years 

 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 21, 2022.  (CCD) 

City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, March 21, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Ward 3 Assistant Mayor Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 

Director Barbara Miner, and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager E. Jay Ellington, City Attorney George Matteson, City 

Clerk Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

Invocation given by Reverend Warren Smith Jr. of Mt Zion Missionary Baptist Church, 

guest of Director Laney Harris. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Finance Controller Shena Washington. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

David Ford said he was concerned about the lack of animal control in the City.  He said 

according to City Code the Police Department was responsible for animal control calls 

after regular business hours.  He also said the Code stated all pets within the City limits 

must be licensed and wear a City tag.  

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City's Comprehensive Plan given by City Manager E. Jay 

Ellington. (Admin) (Memo attached.) 

2. Animal Care and Adoption Center update. (ACAC) Director Lenor Teague.  

 ACAC Director Lenor Teague gave a PowerPoint presentation about the progress of 

the new facility. 

CONSENT 

Director Roberts made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Hart. 

The motion carried and the following items were approved: 



 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 7, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk 

Heather Soyars 

4. Resolution No. 2022-21 authorized the purchase of 54 sets (coats and pants) of 

structural firefighting gear for the Texarkana, Arkansas Fire Department. (TAFD) Fire 

Chief David Fletcher  

REGULAR 

5. Consider the following action concerning substandard structures: 

Conduct a Public Hearing regarding the condemnation of 13 substandard structures. 

Mayor Brown opened the Public Hearing. 

Building Official Shawn Maxey gave a PowerPoint presentation of the substandard 

structures to be condemned. 

Director Harris asked what funds would be used for demolition. 

Building Official Shawn Maxey said Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

funds would be used. 

Director Harris said the City needed more housing programs. 

Mayor Brown said the City had increased the demolition budget.  He asked if anyone would 

like to speak for or against this item.   

No one came forward. 

Mayor Brown closed the Public Hearing 

Resolution No. 2022-22 condemned 13 substandard structures. (PWD) Building 

Official Shawn Maxey  

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

6. Resolution No. 2022-23 adopted a Joint Resolution of the Board of Directors of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, and the City Council of the City of Texarkana, Texas, 

reaffirming the express approval of the Board of Directors under the 1985 Millwood 

Contract for cities and customers served by Texarkana, Texas, to also receive treated 

water from Millwood Reservoir; reaffirming that title to all supplied water purchased 

by Texarkana, Texas, from Texarkana, Arkansas, under the 1985 Millwood Contract, 

passed to Texarkana, Texas, at the point of delivery; resolving all matters under the 



 

1985 Millwood Contract ordered to arbitration; and establishing an effective date. 

(ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

After a brief discussion, motion to adopt the resolution made by Assistant Mayor 

Hollibush, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 8-2022 amended and updated Sec. 2-133 of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Code of Ordinances as related to the Public Facilities Board. (Admin) City 

Manager E. Jay Ellington 

After a brief discussion the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first 

reading in abbreviated for made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 



 

 

8. Ordinance No. 9-2022 authorized the City Manager to purchase a three-year Microsoft 

Enterprise License Agreement for licenses used by all departments of Texarkana 

Water Utilities.  (TWU) IT Manager Brandon Uselton 

After a brief discussion the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first 

reading in abbreviated for made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Hart.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director 

Harris. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 



 

 

9. Ordinance No. 10-2022 amended the Personnel Policy. (FIN) Finance Controller 

Shena Washington 

Director Harris asked why the Police Department’s specialized positions would receive 

additional pay. 

Finance Controller Shena Washington said the specialized positions required additional 

training. 

Director Roberts said he would like for City employees to have their birthday off and asked 

the best way to do it.  He presented the following: “Each employee would be granted 8 

hours of leave for their birthday to be taken during the month of their birthday.  Prior 

approval of the department head/supervisor was required.  Any hours not taken during the 

month would be lost and cannot be accrued or carried over.” 

Mayor Brown said he would not be comfortable approving an amended ordinance to 

include birthdays tonight.  He said this would affect the budget and he would like more 

information before making a decision. 

City Attorney George Matteson said to make the process cleaner, it would be best to adopt 

the ordinance as presented and bring forth a new ordinance to include employee birthdays 

at a future meeting. 

Director Roberts asked the City Manager if an ordinance to grant 8 hours birthday leave 

for City employees could be on the next agenda. 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington said yes. 

Assistant Mayor Hollibush made the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance 

on its first reading in abbreviated form, Seconded by Director Hart.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Miner, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 



 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director 

Brewer. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

Mayor Brown said he would like to have the Board of Directors’ Commentary and the City 

Manager Report before clearing the Boardroom for the Executive Session. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Harris said he received noise complaints about Tri State Metal working up to 

11:00 PM. He also asked how the City would be able to identify houses with lead pipes. 

Texarkana Water Utilities Interim Executive Director Gary Smith said TWU was 

working on identifying all the lead pipes in the City.  The deadline had been extended but 

it would be an extensive and expensive process. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington gave the following report: 

 The Solid Waste Committee would meet March 24, 2022 at 4:00PM at City Hall. 

 The Animal Care and Adoption Center would host a public forum on March 31, 

2022. 

 Waiting for an update concerning redistricting. 

 The Comprehensive Plan Visual Meeting would be at the Rec Center on April 28, 

2022. 

 The draft for the Juvenile Detention Center Interlocal Agreement was sent to Miller 

County Judge Harrison. 



 

 He would be attending the Arkansas Municipal League Conference in Little Rock, 

Arkansas, this weekend.  

 Leadership Texarkana’s What’s to Love featured the Rec Center. 

 He would follow-up with Tri-State Metal about the noise complaint. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session at 7:13 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 7:28 PM and the following action was taken: 

10. Resolution No. 2022-24 appointed James Mike Jones to the Planning Commission. 

(CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, April 4, 2022 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Seconded by Director Harris.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:29 PM. 

APPROVED this the 4th day of April 2022. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 

with A.L. Franks Engineering for the design of Tennessee Road, 

Meadows Road, and Union Road Improvements. (PWD) Public Works 

Director Tyler Richards  

AGENDA DATE: 02/16/2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works  

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: To Award an Engineering Contract to A.L. Franks Engineering for the 

design of Tennessee Road, Meadows Road and Union Road 

Improvements. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The City allocated funding in the 2022 budget for improvements to 

Tennessee Road, Meadows Road and Union Road.  In order to put the 

project out to bid a design and bid book is needed. 

The City submitted a RFQ in January 2022 for engineers, architects and 

surveyors.  A.L. Franks was selected as a qualified engineer for City 

projects based on their qualifications and extensive work history with 

the City.  

A.L. Franks Engineering submitted their design fee proposal for these 

projects in the amount of $116,250.00. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $116,250.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $1,550,000.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval of the engineering contract 

to A.L. Franks Engineering. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Engineering Contract  

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, following a request for qualifications for design services in 

connection with Tennessee Road, Meadows Road, and Union Road improvements, A. L. 

Franks Engineering, was selected as the best suited candidate to provide such services; and 

WHEREAS, the cost for such services is $116,250.00; and     

WHEREAS, funds are budgeted and available;   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that Public Works is hereby authorized to enter into a contract 

with A. L. Franks Engineering for the work and in the amount described above.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of April, 2022. 

 

 

__________________________________ 

         Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase a TIGER 

Boom Rotary Mower for the Public Works Department Streets Division. 

(PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards  

AGENDA DATE: 04/04/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Purchase a TIGER Boom Rotary Mower for the Public Works 

Department Streets Division. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The Public Works Department would like to purchase a TIGER Boom 

Rotary Mower for the Public Works Department Streets Division in the 

amount of $58,322.25 from Little Rock Equipment Sales, Inc. through 

the Buy Board.   

Purchase from this source will meet all bidding requirements. Funds 

were budgeted in General Fund and are available for the purchase of this 

equipment. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $58,322.25 (General Fund) 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $250,000.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Buy Board Quotes 

 

 

  

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, request is made to purchase a TIGER Boom Rotary Mower in the 

amount of $58,322.25, from Little Rock Equipment Sales, Inc. through the Buy-Board; and 

WHEREAS, the funds are budgeted and available; and    

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is authorized to purchase a TIGER Boom 

Rotary Mower on the terms set forth above.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of April, 2022. 

 

 

 __________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase Nutanix 

Hyper-Converged Infrastructure Solution to be utilized as server hosting 

by the Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) for both cities of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, and Texarkana, Texas.  (TWU-IT) IT Manager Brandon 

Uselton 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: TWU-IT Department 

PREPARED BY: Brandon Uselton  

REQUEST: The City Manager to purchase Nutanix Hyper-Converged Infrastructure 

Solution to be utilized as server hosting by the Texarkana Water Utilities 

(TWU) for both cities of Texarkana, Arkansas, and Texarkana, Texas.   

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) Information Technology (IT) 

Division is requesting the Nutanix Hyper-Converged Infrastructure 

Solution presented by Choice Solutions of Overland Park, Kansas, be 

accepted, authorizing the City Manager to purchase off the State of 

Texas DIR Contract (DIR-CPO-4444). The total cost for the purchase of 

the hardware, one year of licensure and support, and professional 

services shall not exceed one hundred fifty-four thousand nine hundred 

eighty-seven 37/100 dollars ($154,987.37) with the Arkansas portion 

being sixty thousand eleven 11/100 dollars ($60,011.11).  
 

The Texarkana Water Utilities IT Department is requesting this solution 

to be purchased to replace an existing Nutanix Hyper-Converged 

Infrastructure Solution purchased in 2016 that has reached its hardware 

end-of-life. The Nutanix Hyper-Converged Infrastructure Solution is 

used to host the virtual server infrastructure used by the Texarkana Water 

Utilities, the City of Texarkana Arkansas, and the City of Texarkana 

Texas, and is considered critical infrastructure essential for the 

operations of the City.   
 

The funds for the purchase of the solution and its first year of licensure 

and support have been appropriated in the Texarkana Water Utilities 

Technology Fund, and funds for the future years of support and license 

are anticipated to be appropriated in the same fund. Utility staff 

recommends approval.  



The total purchase cost is $154,987.37, with the Arkansas portion being 

$60,011.11. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $154,987.37 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $191,250 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

None 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Utility Staff Recommends Approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Exhibit “A” Choice Solutions Quote 022743, and Exhibit 

“B” HCI Presentation from Nutanix 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, the Nutanix Hyper-Converged Infrastructure Solution purchased in 

2016, and a component of critical infrastructure Information Technology functions of the 

City has reached its end of life; and 

WHEREAS, the Information Technology Division of Texarkana Water Utilities 

suggest purchase of a new and current Nutanix Hyper-Converged Infrastructure Solution 

for such purpose; and 

WHEREAS, such purchase is through the Texas Department of Information 

Resources (DIR) being the manner in which such goods and services are procured by Texas 

municipalities; and 

WHEREAS, the total cost of the purchase is $154,987.37, with the Arkansas 

portion of which being $60,011.11; and       

WHEREAS, funds are budgeted and available; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and Utility staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the purchase of the Nutanix Hyper-Converged Infrastructure 

Solution on the terms set forth above through Texas DIR is approved.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of April, 2022. 

 

 

___________________________ 

          Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



Nutanix
Hyper-Converged 
Infrastructure
Refresh of Existing Infrastructure









Questions















 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to amend the 2022 American Rescue Plan Act 

(ARPA) Budget for inclusion of specific street projects. (FIN) Finance 

Director TyRhonda Henderson 

AGENDA DATE: 04/04/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The year end 2022 ARPA Budget was approved by the Board of 

Directors on December 20, 2021. In January 2022, the US Department 

of Treasury issued the SLFRF Final Rule which will go into effect on 

April 1, 2022. This rule changed the determination of revenue loss. The 

interim final rule required all entities receiving ARPA funds to calculate 

actual revenue loss according to the formula articulated in the interim 

final rule. The final rule allows all recipients to elect a “standard 

allowance” of $10 million to spend on government services through the 

period of performance. This change will allow the City to dedicate 

APRA funds to the following street projects:  

 

Rolling Ridge - $436,000 

Dudley Ave - $615,000 

Jefferson Ave (12th to 18th ) - $220,000 

Stallion Dr - $138,000 

Woodland Rd. - $390,000 

Sanderson Ln (I30 to Sugarhill Rd.) - $456,000 

Boyd Rd. - $680,000 

 

Total Street Projects - $2,935,000 

 

The funds for these projects will be reallocated from the following 

allocations:  

 

Misc Street Projects; $2,900,000 

Professional Services: $35,000 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $2,935,000 



AMOUNT BUDGETED: $2,935.000 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and budget 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, issuance of the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) Final 

Rule by the United Stated Department of the Treasury changed the determination of 

revenue loss from that of the prior interim rule and allows the City to reallocate American 

Rescue Plan Act (APRA) funds from Miscellaneous Projects in the amount of 

$2,900,000.00, and Professional Services in the amount of $35,000.00 to the following to 

street projects in respective amounts stated: 

 

Rolling Ridge - $436,000.00 

Dudley Avenue - $615,000.00 

Jefferson Avenue (12th to 18th) - $220,000.00 

Stallion Drive - $138,000.00 

Woodland Road - $390,000.00 

(I-30 to Sugarhill Road) - $456,000.00 

Boyd Road - $680,000.00 

 

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the 2022 ARPA Budget is amended to reflect the reallocations 

described above.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of April, 2022. 

 

 

____________________________ 

            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



American Rescue Act Fund (233)

ACTUAL BUDGET ESTIMATED PROPOSED

2020 2021 2021 2022

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 0 (0) 2,464,052

REVENUES

47002 AMERICAN RESCUE ACT 0 7,915,767 3,957,884 3,957,884

TOTAL 0 7,915,767 3,957,884 3,957,884

SUPPLIES

51013 SALARIES - OTHER 0 400,000 0 0

52010 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0 791,577 135,803 655,774

54003 MISC STREET PROJECTS 0 2,900,000 0 2,900,000

54008 DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 0 471,273 0 471,273

54259 NIX CREEK DRAINAGE 0 1,724,190 0 1,724,190

58446 REGIONAL AIRPORT 0 1,628,727 972,090 656,637

59101 GENERAL FUND (PREMIUM PAY) 0 0 356,874 0

59201 STREET FUND (PREMIUM PAY) 0 0 29,066 0

TOTAL 0 7,915,767 1,493,833 6,407,874

NET CHANGE IN UNRESERVED / (0) 2,464,051 (2,449,990)

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE (0) 2,464,052 14,062

FUND BALANCE AS % OF REVENUES



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located in the 600 block of 

Meadows Road from R-2 Single-family residential to A-1 Mixed use 

rural zoning, in order to build a shop before building the house. (Barr) 

(Ward 3) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck   

AGENDA DATE: 04/04/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to rezone a tract of land from R-2 Single-family 

residential to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning in order to build a shop before 

building the house. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None requested 

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommends rezoning the property to A-1.    

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance to rezone property for benefits of a rural mixed-use 

zone.   

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, Miller County ownership 

information, subdivision, map. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 

K-286, AS AMENDED; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES 
 

WHEREAS, an application to amend the Land Use Plan was filed with the 

Planning Commission of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, requesting that the following 

land be rezoned from R-2 Single family residential to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning: 

 

Lot No. 2, Block 1, BARR SUBDIVISION to the City of Texarkana, Miller 

County, Arkansas. 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, approved said 

application and recommended that the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, adopt the ordinance affecting said rezoning request; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

Ordinance No K-286, as amended, is hereby amended to rezone the above-

described property in the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, from R-2 Single family residential 

to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning.  This is solely a rezoning and no other action, conveyance, 

or release of interest. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of April, 2022. 

 

 ______________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



 

 

 
 

 

Planning Commission review 
Prepared by: 

Planning Division - Public Works Department 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

 



 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 

F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 

D A T E :  March 11, 2022 

S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for April 4, 2022 – Rezoning 

recommendation – Request by Burns Barr, 1048 Vanderbilt Road, 
Texarkana, AR 71854, to rezone property from R-2 Single family  
residential to A-1 Mixed use rural zone in order to construct a shop and 
home on the property under the guidelines the A-1 zone allows.     
   

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:       
 

The property is legally described as Lot No. 2, Block 1, BARR SUBDIVISION and contains 
2.842 acres more or less.  The property is located in the 600 block of Meadows Road and is 
addressed as 91 Meadows Road.  
   
 
REASON FOR REQUEST:    
 
To have the option of locating an accessory building on the property and building it prior to, or 
without construction of a primary dwelling that the A-1 zone offers.   
 
EXISTING LAND USES:      
 

Site:    Vacant 
North:  Single-family dwelling  
East:    Vacant 
South:  Single-family dwelling 
West:   Single-family dwelling 

 
EXISTING ZONING:  
 

Site:     R-2 Single family dwelling  
North:  R-1 Rural residential & R-2 Single family residential     
South:  R-2 Single family residential 
East:    R-1 Rural residential overlay 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

West:   R-2 Single family residential  
  

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING ZONING: 
 
 

The long-term comprehensive plan of 1988 shows this area with a recommendation for single 
family housing with areas on the north south and east as low-density housing.  Development 
in this area has followed the pattern of low-density single-family housing since that plan’s 
development.  The A-1 mixed use rural zone was specifically developed for compatibility with 
R-1 Rural residential zoning that is characterized by low-density housing in less developed 
areas of the City and the size of this property would confine it to one residence.  No other 
land uses are indicated other than single family dwellings on large lots or vacant land adjacent 
to this property and no conflicts are anticipated.   

 

  

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
 
 

Local :             Meadows Drive 
                  
Collector:         None 
 
Arterial:            None 
 
Water:              6” located in Meadows Drive but if the residence is further from the  
                         road than 300 linear feet a well may be used if approved by Miller  
                         County Health Department.   
 
Sewer:              8” located in Meadows Drive but if the residence is further from the  
                         road than 300 linear feet an approved septic system meeting  
                         standards of the Miller County Health department can be used.   
 
Fire hydrant:     Located a few feet north of the property at 620 Meadows Drive.                    
   

CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – “All plans, 
recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through the following procedure 
for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, ordinances, and 
regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, 
at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and proposed ordinance and 
regulations may be recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a majority vote of the 
entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and regulations, the 
commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and regulations to the 
legislative body of the city for its adoption. 
 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended ordinances and 
regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority vote of the entire 
membership, may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances 
or regulations submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 
construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and resolutions by a vote of 
a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted        plans, ordinances, and 
regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the county 
recorder of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, 
ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, February 20, 2022  edition of the Texarkana 
Gazette.  Letters were mailed to twenty-four (24) adjacent property owners within 300’ as 
required.  
 

OPPOSITION:  
 

 

There was opposition prior to the Planning Commission meeting when concerns about 
possible commercial activity was voiced, however, all the neighbors who attended the meeting 
were satisfied this zone was not a threat to them and no objections were presented when the 
plans and zone were better understood.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 
The Planning Commission met on March 8, 2022 and on a motion by Mr. Boots Thomas, 
seconded by Mr. Jason Dupree, a roll call vote carried the motion for approval of the zoning 
recommendation 5-0 with no opposition:  
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Yes 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Yes 
Randall Hickerson Absent 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 
Vacancy  

 

  
 
 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  

To adopt an ordinance to change zoning from R-1 Rural residential to A-1 Mixed use rural 
residential.    
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be read three times before 
adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the second and third 
subsequent meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   

 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/




Extended Legal: ALL LOT 2

BARR, BURNS A II & REBECCA K

Tax Dist:
Type:

Mailing Address:

(07T) TEXARKANA
(RV) Res. Vacant

Name:

1048 VANDERBILT RD  
TEXARKANA, AR 71854

Property Owner

Millage Rate: 54.90

Land

Land Use Size Units
2.842 Acres

Total 2.842

Deed Transfers

Deed Date Book Page Deed Type Stamps Est. Sale Grantee Code Type
3/23/2001 409 765 Warr. Deed 151.80 $46,000 BARR, 

BURNS A II & 
REBECCA K

Unval. Improve
d

Market and Assessed Values

$31,250Land:
Building: 0

Total: $31,250

Estimated 
Market Value

Full Assessed
(20% Mkt Value)

$6,250

0

$6,250

Taxable 
Value

$6,250

0

$6,250

Reappraisal Value History

Tax Year Total Value Total Assessed
2015 $31,250.00 $6,250.00
2016 $31,250.00 $6,250.00
2017 $31,250.00 $6,250.00
2018 $31,250.00 $6,250.00
2019 $31,250.00 $6,250.00
2020 $31,250.00 $6,250.00
2021 $31,250.00 $6,250.00

Note: Tax amounts are estimates only. Contact 
the county/parish tax collector for exact amounts.

$0Homestead 
Credit:

Estimated 
Taxes:

Taxes

$343

Property Information
Physical Address: MEADOWS RD

Subdivision:
Block / Lot:

BARR SUBD
N/A / 002

S-T-R: 27-15S-28W
Size (Acres): 2.842

Miller County Report
Prev. Parcel: 00318500

ID: 405961280020Parcel:

As of: 3/10/2022

Page 1www.actDataScout.com
Subject to terms and conditions.
Not a Legal Document.

http://www.actdatascout.com/


 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 91 S. Valley 

Drive from R-1 Rural residential to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning, in order 

to build a shop before building the house. (Kegley) (Ward 1) (PWD-

Planning) City Planner Mary Beck   

AGENDA DATE: 04/04/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to rezone a tract of land from R-1 Rural residential 

to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning in order to build a shop before building 

the house. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None requested 

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommends rezoning the property to A-1.    

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance to rezone property for benefits of a rural mixed-use 

zone.   

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, Miller County ownership 

information, subdivision plat, map. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 

K-286, AS AMENDED; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, an application to amend the Land Use Plan was filed with the 

Planning Commission of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, requesting that the following 

land be rezoned from R-1 Rural residential to A-1 Mixed use rural zoning: 

 

Lot 1, Block 1, HENNESSY SUBDIVISION, City of Texarkana, Miller 

County, Arkansas. 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, approved said 

application and recommended that the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, adopt the ordinance affecting said rezoning request; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

Ordinance No K-286, as amended, is hereby amended to rezone the above-

described property in the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, from R-1 Rural residential to A-1 

Mixed use rural zoning.  This is solely a rezoning and no other action, conveyance, or 

release of interest. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of April, 2022. 

 

 _____________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



 

 

 
 

 

Planning Commission review 
Prepared by: 

Planning Division - Public Works Department 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

 



Extended Legal: ALL LOT 1

KEGLEY, JIM BOB JR & A MICHELE

Tax Dist:
Type:

Mailing Address:

(07T) TEXARKANA
(AV) Agri Use/Vacant

Name:

841 MC 57  
TEXARKANA, AR 71854

Property Owner

Millage Rate: 54.90

Special Assessments

Assessment Tax Amount
TIMBER TAX $2.40

Total $2.40

Land

Land Use Size Units

Timber(08) 4.120 Acres
Pasture(12) 1.500 Acres
Timber(13) 4.621 Acres
Timber(14) 3.879 Acres
Total 14.120
Deed Transfers

Deed Date File Date Book Page Deed Type Stamps Est. Sale Grantee Code Type
4/21/2021 5/15/2019 2019 R0030

22
Warr. Deed KEGLEY, 

MICHELE- 
DAILEY, 
MARSHA & 

Relative Improve
d

4/6/2021 4/19/2021 2021 R0031
05

Warr. Deed KEGLEY, JIM 
BOB JR & A 
MICHELE

Relative Improve
d

Market and Assessed Values

$2,000Land:
Building: 0

Total: $2,000

Estimated 
Market Value

Full Assessed
(20% Mkt Value)

$400

0

$400

Taxable 
Value

$400

0

$400

Reappraisal Value History

Tax Year Total Value Total Assessed
2021 $2,000.00 $400.00

Note: Tax amounts are estimates only. Contact 
the county/parish tax collector for exact amounts.

$0Homestead 
Credit:

Estimated 
Taxes:

Taxes

$22

Property Information
Physical Address: 91 S VALLEY DR

Subdivision:
Block / Lot:

HENNESSY SUBD
N/A / 001

S-T-R: 25-15S-28W
Size (Acres): 14.120

Miller County Report
Prev. Parcel: 5770170 & 00312800

ID: 467917910010Parcel:

As of: 3/10/2022

Page 1www.actDataScout.com
Subject to terms and conditions.
Not a Legal Document.

http://www.actdatascout.com/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 

F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 

D A T E :  March 11, 2022 

S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for April 4, 2022 – Rezoning 

recommendation – Request by Jim Bob Kegley, 841 MC 57, Texarkana, 
AR 71854 to rezone property from R-1 Rural residential to A-1 Mixed 
use rural zoning.   
   

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:       
 

The property is legally described at Lot 1, Block 1, HENNESSY SUBDIVISION, and contains 
14.12 acres more or less.  The property is located at located at 91 S. Valley Drive.    
 
REASON FOR REQUEST:    
 
The A-1 zone offers options of allowing a shop nearer the front of the property than the 
residence and option to construct the shop building before the house.  
 
EXISTING LAND USES:      
 

Site:    Vacant 
North:  Vacant   
East:    Single-family dwelling 
South:  Single-family dwelling 
West:   Lake 

 
EXISTING ZONING:  
 

Site:     R-1 Rural residential overlay  
North:  R-1 Rural residential overlay     
South:  R-1 Rural residential overlay  
East:    R-1 Rural residential overlay 
West:   R-1 Rural residential  

  

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING ZONING: 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 
 

The long-term comprehensive plan does not include this area.  However, the nearest zoning 
that was part of that plan is identified by a recommendation for low-density single-family 
housing that is a description of the type of land use for R-1 Rural residential zoning.  No other 
land uses are indicated other than rural residential or vacant land in this vicinity and no 
conflicts are anticipated as the A-1 mixed use rural zone is designed to function along side 
R-1 Rural residential zoning.   

  

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
 
 

Local :             South Valley Drive 
                  
Collector:         None 
 
Arterial:            None 
 
Water:              6” located in South Valley Drive  
 
Sewer:              A septic system meeting standards of the Miller  
                         County Health department and Arkansas State  
                         Statutes will be required.   
 
Fire hydrant:     Located on or at the property on South Valley Drive.                  
   

CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – “All plans, 
recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through the following procedure 
for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, ordinances, and 
regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, 
at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and proposed ordinance and 
regulations may be recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a majority vote of the 
entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and regulations, the 
commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and regulations to the 
legislative body of the city for its adoption. 
 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended ordinances and 
regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority vote of the entire 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

membership, may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances 
or regulations submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 
construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and resolutions by a vote of 
a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted        plans, ordinances, and 
regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the county 
recorder of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, 
ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, February 20, 2022  edition of the Texarkana 
Gazette.  Letters were mailed to twenty-four (24) adjacent property owners within 300’ as 
required.  
 

OPPOSITION:  
 

 

None received to date.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 
The Planning Commission met on March 8, 2022 and on a motion by Mr. Boots Thomas, 
seconded by Mr. Jason Dupree, a roll call vote carried the motion for approval of the zoning 
recommendation 5-0 with no opposition:  
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Yes 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Yes 
Randall Hickerson Absent 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 
Vacancy  

 

  
ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  

To adopt an ordinance to change zoning from R-1 Rural residential to A-1 Mixed use rural 
residential.    
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be read three times before 
adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the second and third 
subsequent meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   

 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/




 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 5706 Four States 

Parkway from R-1 Rural residential to O-1 Office quiet commercial. 

(Asbille) (Ward 6) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck   

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: 04/04/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to rezone a tract of land from R-1 Rural residential 

to O-1 Office quiet commercial.        

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YES 

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommends rezoning Miller County Parcel 

#00187800 in order to develop a senior living retirement cluster.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The Planning Commission recommends the restrictive O-1 Office Quiet 

commercial as an appropriate zone at this location.       

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, deed, location map. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 

K-286, AS AMENDED; FOR DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, an application to amend the Land Use Plan was filed with the 

Planning Commission of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, requesting to rezone the 

following tract of land from R-1 Rural Residential to O-1 Office quiet commercial: 

 

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 

THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 15 SOUTH, 

RANGE 28 WEST, SAID BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED BY AN ON THE GROUND SURVEY AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 4; 

THENCE S 87º 33' 04" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 66.67' FEET TO AN 

EXISTING CAPPED ROD, SAID POINT BEING ON THE EAST RIGHT 

OF WAY LINE OF ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY LOOP #245, SAID 

POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 

LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF WAY, RUN S 87º 42' 02" E FOR A 

DISTANCE OF 596.41' FEET TO A SET 80D NAIL AT THE BASE OF 

AN EXISTING 1" GALVANIZED PIPE AND EXISTING 3/4" CRIMPED 

PIPE; THENCE S 2º 13' 08" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 654.78' FEET TO 

A SET 5/8" CAPPED ROD; THENCE N 87º 45' 34" W FOR A DISTANCE 

OF 609.67' FEET TO A SET 5/8" CAPPED ROD ON THE EAST RIGHT 

OF WAY LINE OF ARKANSAS STATE HIGHWAY LOOP #245, 

THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, RUN N 3º 22' 41" FOR 

A DISTANCE OF 655.52' FEET BACK TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING, SAID HAVING AN AREA OF 395043.943 SQUARE 

FEET, (9.069) ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ALL LYING IN MILLER 

COUNTY, ARKANSAS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, has approved said 

application and recommended that the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, adopt the ordinance affecting said rezoning request; and 



 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas; and 

Section 1. Ordinance No K-286, as amended, should be amended to rezone the 

above described 9.069 acres property tract as more specifically described as above in the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, R-1 Rural Residential to O-1 Office quiet commercial. 

Section 2. This Ordinance being necessary for the preservation of the public 

peace, health and safety, an emergency is therefore declared to exist; and this Ordinance 

shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of April, 2022. 

 

 ______________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 

F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 

D A T E :  March 14, 2022 

S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for April 4, 2022 – Rezoning 

recommendation – Request by Artex Properties, Agent Tony Asbille, 
1903 E. 50th Street, Texarkana, AR 71854, to rezone property from R-1 
Rural residential to O-1 Office quiet commercial in order to develop 
retirement housing.. 
  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:       
 

The land is legally described as PT of the NE1/4 SW1/4, Section 4, Township 15S, Range 28W 
and contains 9.069 acres more or less. The property is located at 5706 Four States Fair 
Parkway   
 

REASON FOR REQUEST:    
 
To develop a retirement housing complex as the current zoning only allows single family 
housing on individual lots.   
 
EXISTING LAND USES:      
 

Site:    Vacant 
North:  Single-family dwelling under development  
East:    Vacant 
South:  R.V. & boat storage facility under development 
West:   A church and related sports fields 

 

EXISTING ZONING:  
 

Site:     R-1 Rural residential   
North:  R-1 Rural residential      
South:  C-3 Open display commercial 
East:    C-3 Open display commercial  
West:   C-3 Open display commercial  

  

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING ZONING: 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 
 

The long-term comprehensive plan of 1988 shows this area with a recommendation for 
commercial property with medium density residential to the north.  The zoning requested fits 
with that anticipated zoning development.  Office quiet zoning works well with other business 
zones such as the surrounding C-3 zoning and is also compatible in residential 
neighborhoods due to its restriction on land uses that limit traffic and noise to adjacent 
properties such as the residential development to the north and the church on the east side 
of Four States Fair Parkway.  If the intended senior living project is not developed, the O-1 
zoning would serve as a buffer to the C-3 zoning land use south of this property.  No conflicts 
are anticipated.   

 

  

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
 
 

Local :             None 
                 
Collector:         None 
 
Arterial:            Four States Fair Parkway 
 
Water:              6” located on the west side of Four States Fair Parkway   
 
Sewer:              Sewer would need to be extended to this location or an approved  
                         septic system that meets the approval of Miller County Health  
                        department would be necessary   
 
Fire hydrant:     Located about 215’ from the property on the west side of Four  
                         States Fair Parkway. 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – “All plans, 
recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through the following procedure 
for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, ordinances, and 
regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, 
at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and proposed ordinance and 
regulations may be recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a majority vote of the 
entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and regulations, the 
commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and regulations to the 
legislative body of the city for its adoption. 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended ordinances and 
regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority vote of the entire 
membership, may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances 
or regulations submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 
construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and resolutions by a vote of 
a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted        plans, ordinances, and 
regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the county 
recorder of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, 
ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, February 20, 2022 edition of the Texarkana 
Gazette.  Letters were mailed to five (5) adjacent property owners within 300’ as required.  
 

OPPOSITION:  
 

 

None at this time.  An original request for C-3 Open display commercial zoning was opposed 
at the meeting by Donnie Sealy and Ron Dawson out of concerns for the residential 
development immediately to the north of this property and a compromise of O-1 Office quiet 
zoning was found to be within an allowed land use using the concept of a retirement 
community for the senior housing as the most appropriate land use offered in the municipal 
code.  The O-1 zoning is unopposed.  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 

The Planning Commission met on March 8, 2022 and on a motion by Mr. Anderson Neal, 
seconded by Ms. Bertha Dunn, a roll call vote carried the motion for approval of the zoning 
recommendation 5-0 with no opposition:  
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Yes 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Yes 
Randall Hickerson Absent 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 
Vacancy  

 

  
ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  
To adopt an ordinance to change zoning from R-1 Rural residential to O-1 Office Quiet. 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be read three times before 
adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the second and third 
subsequent meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   

 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission review 
Prepared by: 

Planning Division - Public Works Department 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal 

approval of a private club application on behalf of Hector Leal for the 

Cattlemen’s Club, Inc., at 4018 N. Stateline Avenue. (CCD) 

An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of the board 

and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. 

(Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Prerequisite approval to continue the application process through the 

State. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY: Applicant is requesting prerequisite approval to continue the application 

process through the State.   

Pursuant to ACT 112 of 2017, all new private club applications must be 

submitted with an ordinance from the governing body of the county or 

municipality in which the private club wishes to be located, approving 

the application. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval.  

EXHIBITS: Ordinance  

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING THE REQUEST 

FOR PREREQUISITE MUNICIPAL APPROVAL 

OF A PRIVATE CLUB APPLICATION BY THE 

CATTLEMEN’S CLUB, INC.; DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and Rules and 

Regulations adopted by the Arkansas Alcoholic Beverage Control Division (the “ABC”) in 

accordance therewith requiring prior municipal approval by ordinance as a prerequisite to 

submittal of certain applications to the ABC or its Director relating to private clubs, request has 

been made that this Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, approve the application 

of applicant Hector Leal on behalf of The Cattlemen’s Club, Inc.; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that:   

Section 1.  The request of Hector Leal on behalf of The Cattlemen’s Club, Inc., for 

prerequisite municipal approval of an application for a private club at 4018 N. State Line Avenue, 

Texarkana, Arkansas, 71854 as required by Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and the Rules and 

Regulations of the ABC is hereby granted.  

Section 2.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a municipal endorsement of 

any business operation, nor a waiver of the application of any City ordinance or other local, state, 

or federal law, rule, or regulation, now or hereafter adopted.  

Section 3.  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety, and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency 

is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval.   

 

 

 



PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of April, 2022. 

     

 

 _________________________ 
                       Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 


	Top
	1.	Library Presentation
	item_2_04042022_Library Presentaion

	2.	Employee Awards
	item_3_04042022_ccd_employee service awards

	3.	minutes
	item_4_04042022_ccd_minutes
	item_4_03212022_minutes

	4.	Engineering Contract to A.L. Franks Engineering for the design of Tennessee Road, Meadows Road and Union Road Road Improvements.
	item_5_04042022_pwd_A.L. Franks Engineering Contract - Tennessee Road, Meadows Road & Union Road Rehab Project
	item_5_04042022_Resolution_AL Franks Engineering
	Work Order TXK-01-22 Nix Creek

	5.	Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase a TIGER Boom Rotary Mower for the Public Works Department Streets Division.
	item_6_04042022_pwd_Tiger Boom Rotary Mower
	item_6_04042022_Resolution_TIGER Boom Rotary Mower
	DOC032422

	6.	TWU-IT
	item_11_04042022_twu_IT
	item_11_04042022_twu_Resolution_nutanix hyper-converged
	item_8_04042022_twu_EXHIBIT B Nutanix Presentation
	item_8_04042022_twu_EXHIBIT A Texarakana Nutanix Refresh - 1 Yr. Support and Pro Licensing DIR -CPO-4444 Proposal 022743.v2

	7.	ARPA Budget Amendment
	item_7_04042022_FIN_ARPA street projects
	item_7_04042022_Resolution_ARPA budget
	4.4.22 - ARPA Budget

	8.	rezone barr
	item_9_04042022_Barr rezone_meadows road
	item_9_04042022_barr_Ordinance rezoning
	item_6_04042022_Barr rezone_Map packets
	item_6_04042022_Barr rezone_Memo to CM for rezoning request r-2 to a-1 meadows road
	item_6_04042022_Barr rezone_Subdivision
	item_6_04042022_barr rezone_property ownership

	9.	rezone kegley
	item_10_04042022_Kegley rezone_91 S Valley
	item_10_04042022_kegley_Ordinance rezoning
	item_7_04042022_Kegley rezone_Map for packets
	item_7_04042022_Kegley rezone_property ownership
	item_7_04042022_Kegley rezone_Memo to CM for rezoning request r-1 to a-1 s valley drive
	item_7_04042022_Kegley rezone_Henessy Sub Filed Plat

	10.	rezone asbille
	item_8_04042022_asbille rezone - o-1
	item_8_04042022_asbille_Ordinance rezoning
	item_5_04042022_asbille rezone_Memo to CM for rezoning request r-1 to o-1-0
	item_5_04042022_asbille rezone_Map
	item_5_04042022_asbille rezone_deed for four states fair parkway

	11.	Loca Luna
	item_12_04042022_Loca Luna
	item_12_04042022_ordinance_Loca Luna

	Bottom

